
 
 
 

RFP 2023-02 Unified Communications as a Service and Contact Center 
as a Service (UCaaS and CCaaS), Questions and Answers 

 
1Q. Whether companies from Outside USA can apply for this? (like,from India or Canada) 

A. Not outside of North America.  Canada- Yes 
 
2Q. Whether we need to come over there for meetings? 

A. Yes 
 
3Q. Can we perform the tasks (related to RFP) outside USA? 

A. Must have a presence in the US  
 
4Q. Can we submit the proposals via email? 

A. All proposals must be submitted via email to: BERSprocurement@bers.nyc.gov 
 

5Q. Please reconfirm the due date for this procurement by providing it in response to answers to questions. 
 A. The due date for this RFP is by EDT Friday June 23, 2023. 

 
6Q. When is the anticipated contract start date?  

A. Immediately 
 
7Q. When is the anticipated award date? 

A. Couple of weeks after the bids are reviewed 
 
8Q. Are bidders permitted to deviate in any way from any manner of quoting fees you may be expecting?  For 

example, if there is a pricing page in the RFP, can bidders submit an alternate fee structure?  
A. Preferred to see fees based on requirement list. 

 
9Q. If there is no pricing page in the RFP, do you have any preference for how bidders should quote fees or can 

bidders create their own pricing categories? 
A. As long as all fees are listed clearly with their related categories. 

 
10Q. Please describe your level of satisfaction with your current or recent vendor(s) for the same purchasing activity, 

if applicable.  
A. N/A 

 
11Q. If this is a term contract subject to renewal, what is the term and the maximum number of option periods? 

A. 1 and 3 years 
 
12Q. Has the current contract gone full term? 

A. N/A 



 
13Q. Have all options to extend the current contract been exercised? 

A. N/A  
 
14Q. Who is the incumbent, and how long has the incumbent been providing the requested services?  

A. N/A 
 
15Q. To what extent will the location of the bidder’s proposed location or headquarters have a bearing on any 

award?  
A. Very important 

 
16Q. How are fees currently being billed by any incumbent(s), by category, and at what rates? 

A. N/A 
 
17Q. What estimated or actual dollars were paid last year, last month, or last quarter to any incumbent(s)? 

A. N/A  
 
18Q. Is previous experience with any specific customer information systems, phone systems, or software required? 

A. No  
 
19Q. What is the minimum required total call capacity? 

A. None  
 
20Q. What is the minimum simultaneous inbound call capacity? 

A. 80 
 
21Q. What is the maximum wait time?  

A. It depends on events - Around 30 minutes 
 
22Q. What is the maximum hold time? 

A. None  
 
23Q. What percentage of inbound calls must be answered by a live operator?  

A. Depends on the nature of the call  
 

24Q. What percentage of calls must be resolved without a transfer, second call, or a return call?  
A. It depends on the call. 

 
25Q. What is the maximum percentage of calls that can be terminated by the caller without resolution?  

A. None – all calls should end with some type of resolution 
 

26Q. Is there a minimum or maximum number of operators and supervisors? 
A. None  

 
27Q. What are the call center's hours of operation?  

A. 8:30 am to 4:30 pm EST 
 



 
28Q. What is the required degree of dedication for the call center? (Can call centers work on other contracts at the 

same time as this one)? 
A. N/A 

 
29Q. What is the required degree of dedication for the operators? (Can operators work on other contracts at the 

same time as this one)? 
A. N/A  

 
30Q. Are callers required or allowed to connect with a message verification system or pre-recorded message before 

connecting to a live operator, or must a live operator be the initial contact? 
  A. Callers reach a menu that directs them to either general info or to be connected with an agent. 
 
31Q. What was your average monthly call volume over the past year? 

A. 12,000 
 
32Q. What is the current number of seats for operators and supervisors at your existing call center?  

A. 20 shared 
 

33Q. What is the current average wait time for phone calls? 
A. 6 minutes  

 
34Q. What is the current average handle time for phone calls and other types of communications?  

A. 8 minutes 
 

35Q. What is the current average after-call work time for operators? 
A. N/A 
 

36Q. Over the past year, what is the percentage of calls received in English versus non-English?  
A. Not quantified 

 
37Q. Over the past year, what percentage of calls received were in Spanish? 

A. N/A 
 
38Q. What time of day, days of the week, or times of the year do calls typically peak?   

A. 9:00am – 10:00am – and Tuesday is the busiest day of the week. 
 
39Q. What is BERS' expectation on the vendor's work location? Can the vendor work on this opportunity remotely 
with in-person attendance as needed? Or can resources be split, with technical teams working remotely, and client-
facing resources onsite?  

A. Preferred onsite but resources can be split. 
 
40Q. Does the contract include ongoing maintenance and support? If so, what is the planned contract period in both 

base and/or any option years?  
A. Yes. 1 to 3 years 

 
41Q. Does the current BERS Contact Center system use any CRM or backend interfaces that must be interfaced with 

in the future solution? If so, what are these interfaces and the uses for them?  
A. Yes. Through network setup. Rest APIs 



 
 
42Q.  At this point in time is there a go-live date that you all have in mind for the project? 
 A. To be determined 
 
43Q. Which items from this list of UCaaS requirements are compulsory?  

A. Most of them if not all 
 
43Q. Can the proposer provide alternate RFP language, or propose different terms and conditions, for consideration 
by the NYC BOE?  

A. No 
 

44Q. Does the NYC BOE have an instance of MS Teams that can be leveraged for this project?  
A. Not now 

 
45Q. What model(s) of Cisco telephones are being provided and must be supported?  

A. Cisco 8831, 8841, 8851. 
 
46Q. Could you go into further detail on the Office 365 integration requirements?  

A. Use Teams for messaging, calling, and collaboration. Visual voicemail playing in outlook.  
 
47Q. Would NYC BOE be willing to extend the due date to provide more than one week between the responses to 
questions and the due date for the RFP submission?  

A. We will not extend the due date.  The due date is EDT Friday June 23, 2023.   
 

48Q. Can you please tell me what is the current CRM that you are using today?  
A. N/A at this time 

 
49Q. How many different databases are you looking for the IVR to access user data?  

A. Limit not set. 
 
50Q. How many queues do you currently have in your contact center?  

A. 1 
 

51Q. Do you know what type of analytics you are looking for in your meetings?  
A. Provide usage data for a team owner, and more granular view showing a specific team; also showing data 
usage for a specific channel. Users should be able to filter views to see data for a specific time period. 

 
52Q. Due to the complexity of the bid response would NYC BERS entertain a possible due date extension of 4-weeks 
for this RFP? 

A. We will not extend the due date.  The due date is EDT Friday June 23, 2023.   
 
53Q. (RFP Section 3) Are the “CCaaS Features” and “UCaaS Features” tables intended to be just an 
acknowledgement of system capability, or should all these items be included in the pricing and scope of the RFP 
response? If they are intended to be included in the proposal response, can an amended version of the “Scope of 
Services” be requested to make it clear what should be scoped and priced out?  

A. Preferred to have all items included. 
 

 



 
54Q. (RFP Section 3) In the “CCaaS Features - Cloud Business Phone” table, can you clarify the item “Media storage 
(hot/cold)”?  

A. Data can be accessed online and archived  
 
55Q. (RFP Section 3) Can you describe the integration desired/required with Microsoft Teams? Can you clarify its 
positioning and use within the context of this RFP? 

A.  Vendor needs to provide the integration 
 

56Q. (RFP Section 3) Under table “ UCaaS Features – Cloud Business Phone”: 
a.   “Tier 1 phone number and extension” – will you be open to non-tier 1 PSTN providers like the vendor 

themselves or does it have to be bought from a tier 1 provider?  
A. Preferred T1 provider 

b.   “Financially backed SLA across the platform” – can you clarify the requirement? Is it credits for missing 
SLAs or something else?  
A. Credits for missing SLA 

d.    “UC call recording” – is there a required retention period for UCaaS calls that are not done by CCaaS 
agents?  
A. Minimum One year 

e.   “Citrix Certification” – Can you clarify if an actual certification is needed or will vendor supported 
compatibility be sufficient?  
A. Preferred Citrix certification.  

d.    “Barge-Monitor-Whisper” – is this feature required outside of the contact center agents for all the user 
population?  
A. Contact Center agents. 

e.   “Transfer calls directly from the chat roster” – can you clarify this item?  
A. Call transfer from chat 

f.    “AI-driven analytics for conversation insights” – does this relate to regular UCaaS users or contact center 
agents?"  
A. Contact center 

57Q. (RFP Section 3) Under table “ UCaaS Features – Video and Audio Conferencing”: 
a.   “Conference call-out” – do you need to support call out to international phone numbers?"  

A. Preferred. 
  

58Q. The following appears in a Yes/No 
 
What is IP agnostic access?  

A. Not attached to an IP. Can work across systems 
What version of Citrix is in use?  
        A. Latest version 
What level of Microsoft O365 licensing is in use? 
        A. Premium +What version of Citrix is in use? A. Latest version 
Phone paging - please describe how this works today. Is there an overhead paging system in place?   

           A. Broadcast for UCaaS 
For conferencing, please describe what moderator controls are in use today.  



 
        A. N/A 
How important is integration with existing Cisco equipment?  
       A. Preferred 

 
 
59Q. Would BERS consider an extension to the question submission deadline? 
 A. No 
 
60Q. Would BERS consider an extension to the bid submission deadline? 
 A. No 
 
 
61Q. How many locations do you have and are the users spread out or on different floors?  
 A. 3 
 
62Q. Are you currently running a Single Data Center environment? 
 A. No 
 
63Q. What kind of switches do you currently have? 
 A. Cisco 
 
 
64Q. What is your target installation date?  

A. ASAP 
 
 
65Q. Data migration from on-prem server (legacy) is required. Are we expected to migrate just call center data or 
case and CRM data as well?  

A. N/A 
 
66Q. Should the chosen implementation partner be expected to perform data cleansing also or will the agency 
perform the task and provide clean data file(s) to be uploaded to the new environment?  

A. No 
 
67Q. Do you require office 365 integration beyond outlook for email and contact lists?  

A. Teams 
 


